
 

 
 

Call to Meeting 
June 27, 2023 

 
 
The next Regular Meeting of the Westchester Library System (WLS) is Tuesday, June 27, 2023, 
at 6:00 p.m. PLEASE NOTE: This meeting will take place at the WLS Headquarters, 570 
Taxter Rd, Ste 400, Elmsford, NY 10523. (Masks may be required.)  
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
 

Minutes: May 30, 2023  

Finances 

President’s Report 

WLS Committee Reports  

Executive Director's Report 

• Strategic Plan Update 

PLDA Report – Yvonne Cech, Director, John C. Hart Memorial Library (Yorktown) 

 

NEXT MEETING: The next Regular Meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 26, at 6:00 
p.m. 



WESTCHESTER LIBRARY SYSTEM 

Trustee Meeting 

May 30, 2023 – Approval Pending 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Westchester Library System was called to order by Karen Zevin at 6:00 

p.m. The quorum requirement was met with the following people in attendance: 

 

Board members present: Andrea Bober, Robert Cartolano, Nishat Hydari, Wes Iwanski, Alice 

Joselow, Karen Kelley, Julie Mills-Worthy, Susan Morduch, Francis Okelo, Edris Scherer, Diane 

Tabakman, Karen Zevin 

 

Board Members absent: Maureen LeBlanc, Joseph Puglia 

 

Also present from WLS were: Terry Kirchner, Rob Caluori, Pat Brigham, Kate Meyer 

 

Public Library Directors Association (PLDA) Representative: Yvonne Cech, Director, John C. Hart 

Memorial Library 

 

Karen Kelley, Chair of the Nominating & Board Education Committee, introduced Anthony 

Amiano, who has agreed to fill the vacancy for District V: [Armonk, Bedford Village, Mount 

Pleasant, Pound Ridge].  The Board approved the appointment of Anthony Amiano on a motion by 

Ms. Kelley and seconded by Ms. Scherer. The motion passed unanimously.  

 

The Oath of Office required by New York State for public library system trustees was administered 

to the new-elected trustee Mr. Amiano.  

 

MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the April 25, 2023, meeting were approved on a motion by Ms. Morduch and 

seconded by Mr. Cartolano. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 

The financial report through April 2023 was presented by Mr. Caluori noting the addition of a top-

level summary which is now being included with the reports. He made note of the decrease in cash 

balances as the organization is at the time of year when the most negative cash flow occurs.  Mr. 

Caluori noted that the Audit Committee recently met with the team from Dorfman, Abrams & Music 

to review and accept the FY2022 financial audit. The auditors discussed in detail the work done to 

implement new accounting standards both for leases and the use of space which can now be seen on 

the Balance Sheet included in the financial report.  The audit will be discussed further during 

committee reports. Mr. Caluori also noted that the check register reflects several stale checks voided 

and reissued as part of maintaining WLS's financial records. The Board accepted the financial report 

on a motion by Ms. Scherer and seconded by Ms. Morduch. The motion passed unanimously.  

 

 

 

 



Minutes—Approval Pending Page 2 May 30, 2023 
 

 

 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT  

 

Ms. Zevin reminded the Board to please return the conflict-of-interest papers. She also noted new 

Board members with WLS should be educated on the relationship between WLS and the member 

libraries. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Nominating & Board Education: Ms. Kelley, Chair, reported that the committee met prior to this 

meeting and is pleased to recruit Anthony Amiano to fill the vacancy for District V [Armonk, Bedford 

Village, Mount Pleasant, Pound Ridge]. Ms. Kelley stated that the nominating committee is surveying 

current Board members in anticipation of the next vacancies coming up.  

 

Audit Committee: Mr. Iwanski reported that the committee met with the team from Dorfman, Abrams 

& Music to review and accept the FY2022 financial audit. He also noted that the committee discussed 

changing the auditors periodically and are exploring the option of an RFP for new financial audit 

providers.  

 

Governance Committee: Ms. Morduch reported that the committee has been working behind the 

scenes finalizing the draft employee handbook. Ms. Morduch noted that the WLS attorney was very 

helpful in the process. The committee expects the employee handbook to be finalized in June 2023. 

 

Budget Committee: Ms. Scherer reported that the Budget Committee’s next meeting will be in 

September 2023. 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

A copy of the Executive Director’s Report was mailed in advance of the meeting. 

 

Dr. Kirchner discussed the evolution of the Service Level Agreement between WLS and the member 

libraries. Dr. Kirchner noted that the document is a working document that can be adjusted yearly.  

 

PLDA LIASON’S REPORT  

 

Ms. Cech reported on the May 2023 PLDA meeting where the following was discussed: 

 

• Aspen Discovery has gotten a lot of feedback, and libraries are working with Allison Pryor, 

Technology Trainer, to update their websites. 

 

• PLDA would like to know how to best support newly arrived asylum seekers. For now, this 

issue mainly affects the Yonkers Public. To better coordinate the ability to serve newly arrived 

individuals and families, Westchester County has asked that organizations interested in 

supporting this effort complete an online registration form that will allow the County to reach 

out to the registered organizations as needed. 

 

• The E-Content Committee discussed OverDrive e-book purchases which are currently on a 

shared model. PLDA discussed changing the configuration for OverDrive, so that only the 

purchasing library's users can access titles purchased under this leasing model. 

 

 



Minutes—Approval Pending Page 3 May 30, 2023 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Having completed its agenda, the Board adjourned its meeting at 7:45 p.m. on a motion by Ms. Kelley 

and seconded by Ms. Hydari that passed unanimously.  

 

Respectively submitted, 

 

 

Andrea Zuckerman Bober 

Secretary 







 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 D R A F T



 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Statements and Notes 
 

May 202  3



WESTCHESTER LIBRARY SYSTEM – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH NOTES – SUMMARY – MAY 2023 

All of the figures in the accompanying notes are approximated to the nearest $100 or 1%.  The figures in 
the financial statements are rounded to the nearest dollar and percentages are to two decimal places. 
 
The December 2022 figures included in this statement are now consistent with the audited financial 
statements.  This reflects adjusting entries from the audit process as well as the application of ASC 842 
(Accounting Standards Codification) which changes the way the lease for WLS’s office space is recorded. 
 
Please also note that work continues to upgrade WLS’s financial management system (currently MIP) to 
Sage Intacct.  The go-live date has been set for 8/1/2023. 
 
Balance Sheet Highlights: 
The key changes to the Balance Sheet are a decrease in WLS’s cash position (combined operating and 
reserves), which is lower by $92,100 and a decrease in Deferred Revenue of $223,600. 
 
Income Statement Highlights: 
Net revenue before depreciation was more than budgeted for May ($67,400) and for the year-to-date 
(YTD) ($225,600). Noteworthy variances discussed below.  

Total revenue was essentially within the budget for May and the YTD. This continues to be primarily 
driven by monthly recurring offsetting variances in Interest and the negative variance in Other Revenues 
with Restrictions. 

Total spending in May was less than revenues by $39,200 and came in $62,300 less than the monthly 
budget. 
  



Westchester Library System

Statement of Financial Position - WLS Balance Sheet

As of 5/31/2023

5/31/2023 4/30/2023

Current Period 

Change

Current Period 

% Change 12/31/2022

Assets

   Current Assets

      Operating Cash & Cash Equivalents 974,090 1,066,219 (92,129) -8.64% 2,261,909 

      Reserve Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,797,194 2,787,589 9,606 0.34% 2,762,472 

      Unconditional Promises to Give 1,403,929 1,381,800 22,129 1.60% 333,377 

      Accounts Receivable 114,924 111,254 3,671 3.30% 126,397 

      Prepaid Expenses 825,999 896,923 (70,923) -7.91% 723,226 

      Security Deposits 0 0 0 0.00% 0 

         Total Current Assets 6,116,137 6,243,784 (127,647) -2.04% 6,207,381 

   Long-term Assets

      Property & Equipment 544,109 558,602 (14,493) -2.59% 616,574 

      Right of Use 1,155,488 1,155,488 0 0.00% 1,155,488 

         Total Long-term Assets 1,699,597 1,714,090 (14,493) -0.85% 1,772,062 

      Total Assets 7,815,734 7,957,874 (142,140) -1.79% 7,979,443 

Liabilities

   Short-term Liabilities

      Accounts Payable 393,112 330,598 62,514 18.91% 699,492 

      Deferred Revenue 231,041 454,646 (223,605) -49.18% 6,686 

      Short-Term Right of Use 268,208 268,208 0 0.00% 268,208 

         Total Short-term Liabilities 892,360 1,053,452 (161,091) -15.29% 974,385 

   Long-term Liabilities

      Long-Term Right of Use 1,104,346 1,104,346 0 0.00% 1,104,346 

      Deferred Rent 0 0 0 0.00% 0 

      Post-Retirement Benefits Payable 3,856,991 3,856,991 0 0.00% 3,856,991 

         Total Long-term Liabilities 4,961,337 4,961,337 0 0.00% 4,961,337 

      Total Liabilities 5,853,697 6,014,789 (161,091) -2.68% 5,935,722 

Net Assets

Working Capital 5,223,777 5,190,332 33,445 0.64% 5,232,996 

Long-Term Net Assets (3,261,740) (3,247,247) (14,493) 0.45% (3,189,275)

      Total Net Assets 1,962,037 1,943,086 18,951 0.98% 2,043,721 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 7,815,734 7,957,874 (142,140) -1.79% 7,979,443 



NOTES FOR MAY 2023 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - WLS BALANCE SHEET 
The key changes to the Balance Sheet are a decrease in WLS’s cash position (combined operating and 
reserves), which is lower by $82,500 and a decrease in Deferred Revenue of $223,600. 
 
Current Assets: This section indicates the organization’s liquidity by showing what assets WLS holds in 
cash and what assets will be available in cash in the near future. 
  
Cash & Cash Equivalents: This line shows the total cash in WLS’s bank accounts, investment accounts and 
petty cash. – In May, WLS’s operating cash decreased by $92,100 while reserves increased $9,600 for a 
net decrease of $82,500. With $336,900 in receipts, activity included $326,000 from Westchester 
County for the first quarter of 2023.  Aside from rent, payroll and benefits, Internet, and delivery to 
libraries, the notable expenditures included $28,100 to Hoopla for Pay Per Use electronic content for 
library patrons and $8,500 to STEM Alliance for their work with the Reconnect with Tech program. 

Unconditional Promises (These are promises to give money to WLS without any restrictions attached.):  
The figure in this line increased by $22,100 in May.  This is the result of recording $348,100 in receivable 
revenue from New York State, Westchester County and eRate for 2023 aid which is offset by the receipt 
of $326,000 in earned revenue from Westchester County for the first quarter of 2023. 

 
Short term Liabilities: This section shows WLS’s near-term obligations. 
 
Deferred Revenue: Funds received which have not yet been earned. – This figure decreased by $223,600, 
the result of recognizing revenues from IT, eContent, and movie licensing. 



Westchester Library System

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Comparison to Budget with 2021 and 2022 YTD

From 5/1/2023 Through 5/31/2023

5/31/2023

Current Period 

Budget

Current Period 

Budget 

Variance 5/31/2020 YTD 5/31/2022 YTD 5/31/2023 YTD YTD Budget

YTD Budget 

Variance Total Budget

Revenue

State Revenues without Restrictions 205,910 205,921 (11) 968,762 940,491 1,029,551 1,029,604 (53) 2,471,050 

County Revenues without Restrictions 109,515 106,008 3,507 429,000 458,776 536,855 530,042 6,813 1,272,100 

Federal Revenues without Restrictions 13,750 13,750 0 68,750 264,380 68,750 68,750 0 165,000 

Member Technology Fees 223,386 224,833 (1,448) 1,185,879 1,169,739 1,115,758 1,124,167 (8,408) 2,698,000 

Fund Raising & Contributions 93 0 93 13,113 508 211 0 211 0 

Interest 15,628 417 15,211 9,277 1,064 47,606 2,083 45,523 5,000 

WEBS & Other 1,065 208 857 10,110 3,995 5,973 1,042 4,931 2,500 

Government Revenues with Restrictions 18,955 18,958 (3) 89,257 88,720 94,775 94,792 (17) 227,500 

Other Revenues with Restrictions 1,359 14,417 (13,058) 13,258 274,943 26,326 72,083 (45,757) 173,000 

Total Revenue 589,660 584,512 5,148 2,787,407 3,202,616 2,925,805 2,922,562 3,243 7,014,150 

Expenditures

Salaries 183,614 197,935 14,322 951,437 969,144 884,523 989,676 105,153 2,375,223 

Fringe Benefits 94,774 112,350 17,576 480,858 512,316 491,135 561,751 70,616 1,348,202 

Professional Fees 471 4,275 3,804 58,819 5,486 11,548 21,375 9,827 51,300 

Equipment 6,618 15,833 9,215 138,640 57,999 11,264 79,167 67,903 190,000 

Library Materials 67,309 59,202 (8,108) 371,816 301,293 332,610 296,008 (36,602) 710,420 

Rent and Utilities 30,428 29,656 (772) 139,361 161,378 152,183 148,279 (3,904) 355,870 

Repairs and Maintenance 44,130 46,617 2,487 161,113 181,145 287,672 233,083 (54,589) 559,400 

Supplies 137 3,796 3,659 9,680 12,106 1,350 18,979 17,629 45,550 

Telephone and Internet 38,592 38,925 333 143,973 184,007 208,851 194,625 (14,226) 467,100 

Printing and Postage 2,583 6,242 3,658 8,384 37,470 31,265 31,208 (57) 74,900 

Bibliographic Fees 7,482 7,458 (23) 31,533 32,891 35,400 37,292 1,892 89,500 

Professional Development 625 8,171 7,546 28,667 24,949 23,255 40,854 17,600 98,050 

Travel 1,379 4,200 2,821 9,077 5,568 11,312 21,000 9,688 50,400 

Memberships 0 2,333 2,333 2,918 10,913 12,687 11,667 (1,020) 28,000 

Contractual Services 29,135 32,942 3,807 74,042 208,107 170,169 164,708 (5,461) 395,300 

Delivery Service 40,173 37,583 (2,590) 87,428 202,373 188,280 187,917 (363) 451,000 

Special Events 0 0 0 1,018 0 0 0 0 

Insurance 2,580 2,917 337 9,973 16,438 16,113 14,583 (1,530) 35,000 

Miscellaneous 401 2,250 1,849 3,622 2,265 2,349 11,250 8,901 27,000 

Total Expenditures 550,432 612,685 62,253 2,712,357 2,925,849 2,871,963 3,063,423 191,460 7,352,215 

Net Revenue Before Depreciation 39,229 (28,172) 67,401 75,050 276,768 53,842 (140,860) 194,702 (338,065)

Non-Cash Activity

Depreciation 14,493 14,083 (410) 93,707 56,103 72,466 70,417 (2,049) 169,000 

Unrealized Gain/Loss on Investments 5,784 0 (5,784) (6,508) (169) 1,956 0 (1,956) 0 

Total Non-Cash Activity 20,277 14,083 (6,194) 87,199 55,935 74,421 70,417 (4,004) 169,000 

Net Revenue 18,951 (42,255) 61,207 (12,149) 220,833 (20,579) (211,277) 190,698 (507,065)



NOTES FOR MAY 2023 (INCOME STATEMENT) STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES –  
COMPARISON TO BUDGET WITH 2021 AND 2022 YTD 

Net revenue before depreciation was more than budgeted for May ($67,400) and for the year-to-date 
(YTD) ($225,600). Noteworthy variances discussed below.  

Revenues: 

Total revenue was essentially within the budget for May and the YTD. This continues to be primarily 
driven by monthly recurring offsetting variances in Interest and the negative variance in Other Revenues 
with Restrictions and is discussed in greater details below. 

Interest for May was significantly higher than budgeted. At the time the budget was created, interest 
rates were beginning to rise but could not be fully anticipated.  Interest earned on WLS’s cash balances 
is based on the excess balance, which is the average collected balance less minimum balance 
requirements.   

Other Revenues with Restrictions was under budget by 91% ($13,100) driven primarily by a shortfall in 
the Restricted Contributions line. This is consistent with years past and while the budget assumes that 
approximately $14,400 would be earned in this line each month, the monies raised will fluctuate 
monthly. 

Expenses: 

Total spending in May was less than revenues by $39,200 and came in $62,300 less than the monthly 
budget. Significant positive and negative variances are discussed below. 

Fringe Benefits – This line ended the month $17,600 under budget.  The variance is attributed to the 
vacancies discussed in the Salaries line as well as contributions from retirees for health insurance. 

Salaries – Spending in this line was $14,300 under budget for May.  This is primarily due to one part-time 
and three full-time positions in the budget that are currently vacant.  Three positions are in the process 
of being filled, one is currently being filled by a temporary contractor, expenses for which appear in 
Contractual Services. 

Equipment – This line was underspent by $9,200 compared to the budget for May and included $5,500 
for equipment related to the Reconnect with Tech program. Other expenses budgeted in this line, in 
addition to traditional IT expenses for equipment replacement, includes laptops for staff as part of 
WLS’s effort to create a more mobile-enabled and security-aware work environment.  While there is 
some spending in this line monthly, most purchases (for both IT and the laptop project) will typically 
occur as larger purchases in a given period.   

Library Materials – This line was over budget by $8,100 for the month.  This was driven by greater than 
anticipated activity in Pay Per Use services like Kanopy and Hoopla. 



 

 

Executive Director’s Report 
June 2023 

 
 
 
Mount Vernon Public Library – Registration Update 
 
Earlier this month, the Division of Library Development (DLD) provided the Mount Vernon 
Public Library Board of Trustees (four of the five members are newly elected) with an update 
on the registration review process.  
 
On the positive side: 

• The board currently has a full complement of five library trustees 

• The required policies were approved by the board and submitted to DLD for review. 

• The required bylaws revisions were submitted to DLD. These amended bylaws required 

MVPL board approval at a regularly scheduled meeting 

• The board identified $269,000 of miscellaneous expenses in MVPL’s 2020 Annual 

Report which had been a major obstacle in reconciling financial reports.  

 
While progress was made, neither an approvable registration application nor approvable 
annual reports have been submitted to DLD. At this point, MVPL continues to be ineligible to 
receive local and State funding. To complete the registration process, the MVPL board must:  
 

• Approve the bylaws reviewed by DLD as part of the re-registration process. As per the 

MVPL bylaws, this approval process must occur during a regularly scheduled board 

meeting. 

• Formally reconcile the starting and ending balances of the library’s 2020 Annual 

Report. The starting balance for 2020 is $1.3 million more than the ending cash 

balance from the prior year.  

• Complete the Library’s 2021 and 2022 Annual Reports. The timely submission of 

Annual Reports is required for compliance with Minimum Standards for Public Libraries 

in New York.  

  
Due to its failure to complete its registration and submit an approvable Annual Report by the 
State Education Department’s deadline of March 31, 2022, MVPL is currently unable to 
receive public funding. To date, MVPL has lost $63,057 of its Local Library Services Aid for 
2021, 2022 and 2023, and has had $100,000 in State Aid for Public Library Construction 
held back. MVPL is also ineligible to collect local public funding. Therefore, MVPL could be 
ineligible to receive its local school district tax levy in September if the library board does not 
complete its registration and submit approvable 2020, 2021, and 2022 Annual Reports.  

  



 
 
 

  Page 2 

 

MVPL must successfully complete its registration and submit approvable Annual Reports by 
September 1, 2023, to be eligible to receive local and State public funds.  
  
Failure to meet this September 1, 2023, deadline may lead to denial of registration. Denial 
or loss of registration can lead to the loss of system services, the loss of public funding for 
MVPL and the revocation of the library’s charter.  
 
When possible, WLS staff will continue to provide support to MVPL staff and board members 
during this process. Most of the activities that need to be accomplished are outside of the 
purview of WLS and are within the control of the MVPL staff and board. 
 
 
WLS Trustee Institute – “Understanding Mass Communication and Today’s Challenges” 
“Understanding Mass Communication and Today’s Challenges” is the theme of the WLS 
Trustee Institute on Thursday, July 20, 2023. A light supper will be served at 6 PM followed 
by the presentation. This is an in-person event designed to help library directors and trustees 
to: 

• Deal with controversial issues and disruptive behavior 

• Effectively respond to crisis and reputation management issues 

• Prepare for future challenges 

Key take-aways from the event include: 
• How to prepare for a crisis – before it becomes a crisis 

• Understand core components of good policy and how policies help define the communication 

actions taken in a crisis 

This presentation will be facilitated by representatives from the Harrison Edwards Crisis 
Communications Team: Lisa Buchman, Executive Vice President and Adam Brill, Sr., 
Communications Director. 
There is no charge to attend the event, but space is limited. Register to attend at 
https://westchesterlibraries.evanced.info/signup/EventDetails?EventId=6856. 
 
 

Information Technology (IT) Services 
 
After an extensive search, two qualified individuals that bring a strong blend of technology 

and people skills are scheduled to join the IT team in July. The recruitment process included 

job postings promoted on the WLS website, through social media and on Indeed.com. The 

new team members will provide direct support of services provided to libraries as part of the 

Service Level Agreements (SLA). Filling these open positions will enable the IT department to 

better align staff skill sets with the evolving requirements of technology trends and the needs 

of libraries today and tomorrow.  

 

Current IT services will be reviewed in the upcoming weeks and new service options may be 

explored as part of the process of developing the 2024 SLA.  All existing services are 

expected to continue to be provided in 2024. 

 

 

https://westchesterlibraries.evanced.info/signup/EventDetails?EventId=6856


 
 
 

  Page 3 

 

 

Training remains an important discussion at PLDA (Public Library Directors Association) and 

PLDA technology committee meetings The need to have trained staff has become evident as 

innovative technologies and software are introduced. New options to develop staff skills will 

be tested and implemented over the next few months. Regional and local training sessions are 

being considered following requests from several libraries. 

 
 
Public Innovation and Engagement (PIE) | Outreach Highlights - June 2023 
 
RECONNECT WITH TECH 
 
WLS's reentry-directed digital equity program - Reconnect with Tech - will have 6 cohorts this 
year. This is an increase in the number of cohorts originally planned, made possible by some 
careful stewardship of our funds, and applying what we've learned to date. These additional 
cohorts will help us reach our goal of serving up to 120 formerly incarcerated individuals. 
The Department of Corrections, WEOC, FSW and other local organizations are excited to 
continue collaborating with us. 
 

Our reentry coordinator, Linda Smith, has registered 90 individuals for 
the program as of this June. Linda’s role in the project includes 
confirming the ability of individuals to attend, securing reliable 
transportation when needed, addressing participant concerns, and 
setting expectations. 60 registrants have attended the program, with 50 
individuals completing the full 15 hours. This kind of drop-off is expected 
in adult education programming- especially with so many participants 
living in shelters. Still, our better than 50% completion rate is a notable 
success. 

 
We've had a couple of success stories from students who have finished the program. One 
student from the first cohort was approached by the STEM Alliance to apply to be a tech 
assistant. More recently, another student who completed the program has started working as 
a custodian at a library in Westchester. We hear about these successes when students 
reconnect with Linda; this happens because she continues to provide resource navigation 
once participants have completed the program. They can reach her by using the same phone 
number for registration: 914-467-8017. 
 
OUTREACH EVENTS 
 
● White Plains Pride. On June 4th, Westchester Library System joined forces with 
the White Plains Public Library for the annual PRIDE event held in downtown 

White Plains. The event proved to be a 
tremendous success, attracting more than 
7500 attendees, with more than 650 
individuals actively interacting with staff members 
from both White Plains and WLS. A noteworthy 
aspect of the event was the distribution of 70 books, 
including titles from ALA’s Office of Intellectual 



 
 
 

  Page 4 

 

Freedom’s most challenged books of 2022, with a  
 
special focus on promoting awareness about LGBTQIA+ issues and perspectives. This 
initiative served to foster inclusivity, educate the community, and encourage dialogue 
surrounding LGBTQIA+ topics. 
 
PARTNERSHIP 
 
● Senior Law Day Collaborative. The English-Spanish simulcast series concluded in May, 
marking the end of a successful test run of live-translation programming. Recordings of all 
events from the series are now available on the web site and will be actively promoted 
throughout the year.  
 
Following the conclusion of the simulcast series, we jumped back into our regular biweekly 
webinars. One notable webinar, "Myths and Realities of Asking for 
Help in 2023: A Presentation in Honor of World Elder Abuse 
Awareness Day" served as a captivating kickoff for the new schedule. 
Panelists from Family Services of Westchester, Pace Women’s Justice 
Center, Adult Protective Services, and the Westchester’s District 
Attorney’s Office joined forces to shed light on the process of 
addressing elder abuse; Outreach’s Krishna Brodigan served as the 
moderator. Overwhelming feedback to the webinar proved that the 
subject matter and case study left a lasting impression on participants. The information 
presented during the session inspired many attendees to take meaningful action, furthering 
the cause of raising awareness about elder abuse and encouraging individuals to seek 
assistance when needed. 
 
● Battle of the Books (BoB). WLS has been working in collaboration with the BoB board and 
has purchased books for both the grade 4-7 and the grade 6-12 teams to fulfill the 
remaining identified need. The books will be distributed to the requesting libraries upon 
arrival. WLS has hosted and assisted in the scheduling of several informational meetings 
throughout May & June. Dana Hysell (Outreach Services Specialist) is also working closely 
with the Board as she has been asked to serve as the “teen question expert” at this year’s in-
person battle in October. She has met with the BoB Board President to offer feedback and 
ideas for new outreach strategies for future year’s battles. 
 
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FOR LIBRARY STAFF: 
  
● Renovating for the Missing Patron. 30 participants (librarians, library staff, directors) joined 
NYU professor David Vinjamuri for a 3-hour workshop on planning our library spaces to 
meet the hidden needs of our patrons- particularly the unexpressed needs of community 
members who are often steamrolled by more vocal library users. Participants from WLS and 
RCLS learned strategies to analyze their patron behavioral patterns to think critically about 
redesigning library spaces. We would like to provide this training again for trustees, as 
David’s examples highlighted the importance of looking beyond our own assumptions and 
using data to drive planning. 
 
 
 



 
 
 

  Page 5 

 

 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Terry L. Kirchner, PhD 
Executive Director 




